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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct (the Code) of the Company is adopted by and applies to all Board Members, Senior
Management and Employees of the Company and is based on the fundamental principles of discipling, integrity
and mutual respect. The Code intends to provide guidanoe to the Company and its stakeholders to conduct
business with honesty, integrity and in accordance with the highest ethical and legal standards.

The salient features of the Code are:
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

All employees aro required to maintain and support the Company in maintaining the highest degree of Corporate
Ccvernance praotices.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES & REGULATIONS

We respect the law at all times. Compliance with all applicable laws and regulations must never be compromised,
We also expect our employees to comply with all internal rules and regulations as are applicable in any given
situation.

TRANSACTICNS' TRANSPARENCY

The Company ensures that true, fair and timely business transactions must be recorded by maintaining the
accounting and financial reporting standards, as applicable to the company.

INSIDER TRADING

Employees of the Company are required to refrain from Insider Trading and are required to comply with the Insider
Trading Regulations laid down by SECP and updated from time to time,

PROTECTIOM OF COMPANY ASSETS

Employees must never engage in fraudulent or any other dishonest conduct involving the property or assets ot the
Company. All employees shall safeguard and make only proper and efficient use of Company property and shall
seek to protect it from loss, damage, misuse, theft, fraud, embezzlement and destruction. These obligations cover
both tangible and intangible assets, including trademarks, know-how, confidential or proprietary information.

CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS

A Conflict of Interest occurs when personal interests of an employee compete with the interests of the Company.
While representing the Company in dealings with third parties, employees shall not allow themselves to be placed in
a position in which an actual or apparent conflict of interest exists. Employees are expeoted to be honest and ethieal
in dealing with each other, with customers, suppliers, dealers, vendors and contractors to avoid compromises on
the ability of transacting business on competitive basis.

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
Confidential information oconsists of any information that is not or not yst public information. It includes trade
secrets, business, marketing and service plans, enginesring ideas, databases, records, salary information and

any non-published financial or other deta. Furthermore, emplcyees must use best efforts to avoid unintentional
disclosure by applying special care when storing or transmitting confidential information
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ANTI-BRIBERY / CORRUPTION

Employees must never, directly or through intermediaries, offer or promise any personal or improper financial or
other advantage in order to obtain or retain a business or other advantage from a third party, whether public or
private. Nor must they accept any such advantage in return for any preferential treatment of a third party. Moreover,
emplayees must refrain from any activity or behavior that could give rise to the appearance or suspicion of such
conduct or the attempt thereof. Employees should be aware that the offering or giving of improper benefits in
order to influence the decision of the recipient, even if he or she is nct a government official, may not only entail
disciplinary sanctions but also result in criminal charges. Improper benefits may consist of anything of value for the
recipient, including employment or consultancy contracts for closely related parties.

RECEWING OF GIFTS, PAYMENTS

Employees shall not be influenced by receiving favours nor shall they try to improperly Influence others by providing
favours. Employees may only offer or accept reasonable meals and symbolic giits which are appropriate under the
circumstances, and they shall not accept or offer gifts, meals, or entertainment if such behaviour could create the
impressicn of improperly influencing the respective business relationship.

No employee shall offer to or accept from any third party gifts taking the form of money, loans, kickbacks or similar
monetary advantages whatever the value involved,

EOQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT

The Company believes in praviding equal opportunities to all its employees. There is no discrimination of caste,
refigion, color, marital status and gender at waork. Al the policies and practices are administered in a manner
ensuring equal opportunity to the eligible candidates and all decisions are merit based.

HARASSMENT FREE WORKPLACE

We respect the personal dignity, privacy and personal rights of every emplcyee and are committed to maintaining
a warkplace free from discrimination and harassment. Therefore, employees must not discriminate on the basis
of origin, nationality, religion, race, gender, age or engage in any kind of verbal or physical harassment. Strict
disciplinary acticn will be taken against any person who is found to be in breach of this rule.

WHISTLE BLOWING

All employees are advised to immediately report any improper, unethical or illegal conduct of any colleague or
Supervisor through an email at: info@pibt.com.pk
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CHAIRMAN’S
- REVIEWREPORT ~ —

It gives me
pleasure
to present
this review
report to the
stakeholders
of Pakistan
International
Bulk Terminal
Limited on
the overall
performance
of the Board
and the
effectiveness
of its role In
achieving the
objectives of
the Company.

As menlioned in delall in the Directors’
Reporl, the Company has successfully
completed its Project ie, a lerminal
to handle bulk cargo vessels at Port
Qasim and commenced its commercial
operalions from July 3, 2017, | would like
to congratulate all the stakeholders of the
Company, and commend the management,
shareholders and the regulatory authoriliss
for achieving this significant milestone.

The Company has an effeolive governance
framework in place which ensures the
success of the company. During he year
under review, the Board has played an
sffective role in managing the affairs of the
Company as is depicted by the successful
operational performance of the company
despite being the first year of aperalion.

The annual evaluation of the Board of
Directors {the “Board") has besn carried out
under lhe Code of Corporate Governance 1o
ensure that the Board's overall performance
is in line with the objectives set for the
Company. The Board was fully involved
in the slralegic planning process ct the
prcject, remained updated regularly on the
progress of the project through inleractive
presentalions by the manegement and
accordingly previded apprepriate directicn
and oversight on a timely basis. The Board
will continue tc play ils rcle in setting the
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dircclion of the Company and ensuring high
standards of governance in every aspect ot
the Company's business.

Looking ahead, our target now remains that
PIBT will, Insha-Allah, operate sfficienlly es
lhe ceuntry’s first coal, clinker and cement
handling lerminal facility. Qur objective is to
modemize the pertinfrastructure of Pakistan
by offering efficient handling services to
the trade of the country. | am hepeful that
PIBT will achieve this mission as the first
step has besn completed by establishing a
state-of-the-art terminal to handle dirty bulk
carge in line with international standards
of productivily, and operaling iho same
successfully for one year.

On behall of PIBT, | wish to acknowledge
the contribulion of all cur employess in the
success ot the Projeot. Furlher, | would
ke to thank lhe management of Port
Qasim Authority, our lenders, Intsmalional
Finance Corporalion, OPEC Funds for
Internalional Developmenl, the syndicate
of lccal Pakislani commercial banks,
our vendors, our Contractors and our
valued sharsholders, for thelr confidence,
continued support and ccmmitment to the
Project.

Capt. Haleem A. Siddlqui
Chairman
Karachi: Octcber 03, 2018
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DIRECTORS”
REPORT

The Directors

are pleased to
present the Annual
report of Pakistan
International
Bulk Terminal

.. ABOUT THE COMPANY
“Limited (PIBT) |

7 . v » The Company has entered into a Build Operate Transfer (BOT)
(“The Company”) contract with Port Qasim Authority (PQA) on November 06, 2010
i for the construction, development, operations and management
together Wlth the et a coal and clinker / cement terminal at Port Muhammad Bin

audited financial Qasim for a peried of thirty years.
statements of the . The Company commenced its commercial operations frem July
. ' 8, 2017, and the "Certificate of Successful Commissioning" for
Com pany fOl’, the coal handling system has been received from PQA. The Directors
o congratulate all the stakeholders of the Project on achieving
year ended .June this significant milestone & commend them for investing their

30 20‘] 8 ' : ' confidence in the Prcject,
’ b ]
D . BUSINESS REVIEW

During this first year of operations, your Ccmpany has successfully
handled 2,745,048 tons of ooal and 96,370 of clinker through fifty
four (54) vessels. Currently, a ship carrying coal cargc of around
55,000 tcns takes appreximately two days to discharge at ycur
Company and the average discharge rate for coal vessels is around
2,000 tons per hour, The management is focusing on strategies
to bring more efficiency in its regarding cargo handling oprations,
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with the objective of attracting and retaining customers.
During the year, the consistent growth is witnessed on
quarter on quarter basis, as your Company handled
308,049 tons cargo in first quarter, 531,759 tons
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cargo in second quarter, 533,797 tons cargo in third
quarter and 1,371,443 tons cargo in fourth quarter, as
graphically shown below;
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GOING FORWARD

Corresponding to the business performance above,
the management of your Company is in advance
negotiations with potential customers for commercial
contracts for handling cargos, to bring efficiencies in
their respective supply chains,

Considering the environmental chalienges associated
with handling of coal at Karachi Port Trust (KPT) and
susceptibility of unfavorable health conditions to the
citizens of the Karachi, the Honorable Supreme Court
of Pakistan (SC) via order dated June 20, 2018 has
refrained the handling of ali the ships carrying imported
coal to Pakistan at KPT. PIBT’s existing terminal
facilities of handling and storage are already operating
at international standards of environmental control as
further elaborated in this Directors’ Report, and the
Company stands ccmmitted to the SC's crder in spirit
and in performance.

Moreover, your Ccmpany has decided to set up
LPG handling facilities at its existing terminal site for
which a supplementary Implementation Agreement
will be executed with PQA in due course. The LPC
operations will improve profitability by contributing to
the infrastructure’s fixed costs and add value to the
Company’s operations.

The Board cf Directors of your company would like
to reiterate their commitment to operate efficiently
Pakistan’s first state-of-the-art mechanized bulk cargo
handling terminal for the handiing of Coal, Clinker &
Cement, compliant with international standards of
exoellence which will curtail environment pollution and
modernize the port infrastructure of the country,

ECONOMIC FACTORS FACING THE COMPANY

The Government of Pakistan ("GOP") has shown
commitment to develop a dynamic and competitive
market in order to accelerate and sustain economic
growth through productivity, competitiveness and
entrepreneurship. This commitment of the GOP includes
extensive infrastructural development in China-Pakistan
Economic Corridor (CPEC) and other on-going private
and public sector construction projects which created
an overall positive future outlook for the cement industry,
the biggest consumers of high quality imported coal.
To meet this increase in domestic requirement, majcr
cement companies have announced expansions in
their production capacities materializing in due course.
Moreover, many other industries such as textile, paper,
etc. have shiffed to high quality impaorted coal in their
primary production processes. The above factors will
further create a sustainable demand for imported coal.

GQP also plans to invest in coal-based power
plants to meet the increasing energy demand and
to overcome the undersupply of the energy sector in
Pakistan. To accomplish this objective, GGP plans to
meet the demand through indigenous coal; which Is
mostly ranked as low quality coal/lignite containing
high sulphur, ash content and high moisture. industries
generally require medium/high quality coal, demand of
which is being met through imported coal directly or
mixing the imported coal with indigenous coal. Coal
is one of the cheapest fuels for power generation and
carries more than 35% share globally; whereas Pakistan
has a minimal share in power generation through coal
fired power plants; thus a natural shift in the use of coal
is expected which has already materialized in the form
of significant increase in percentage of coal as source of
power generation 1o 9.9%. Therefore, management of
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your company believes that a sustainable demand for
the imporfed coal will continue to exist in the country.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company relies on internal and external risk
identification methods and constantly develops
strategies to mitigate these long term and short term
risks. The operational risk management plan of the
Company includes strategies for risk reduction through
sustainable equipment and infrastructure maintenance
by investing in reliable methods of cargo handling.
Details of the Company's financial risk management are
disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL MATTERS

During the year, the members of the Company, in the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on May 28, 2018,
approved increase in the Authorized Share Capital of
the Company from PKR 15,000,000,000/- divided into
1,600,000,000 ordinary shares of PKR 10 each to PKR
20,000,000,000/- divided into 2,000,000,000 crdinary
shares of PKR 10 each by creation of 500,000,000
additional ordinary shares of PKR 10 each to rank pari
passu in every respect with the existing ordinary shares
of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company, in their
meeting held on May 28, 2018 approved increase in
issued, subscribed and paid up capital from PKR
14,869,959,000 divided in 1,485,995,900 ordinary
sharesto PKR 17,860,927,720 dividedin 1,785,002,772
ordinary shares by issue of 300,096,872 shares by way
of right issue at the rate of 20.195 shares for every
100 ordinary shares. Subsequently, the entire process
of allotment of right shares was completed on August
31, 2018. The Directors express their gratitude to our
Shareholders in the general public and the Institutional
Investors in the Company.

During the year, the Company delayed its repayment of
loans in agreement with the lenders as the Company is in
initial stage of operations, hence facing cash flow issues.
However, subsequent to the year end, the Company
paid the due amount through advances received
from sponsors against subscription of right shares as
disclosed in note 16.7 to the financial statements.

The pending legal matters and their probable exposure
to the Company is disclosed in note 13.7 to the financial
statcments. The management believes based on the
adviee of its legal counsel that the eventual culcome of
these matters will be in favour of the Compaiy.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year, the operational performance of the
Company resulted in positive contributicn margins.
However, the Company has posted net loss before
taxation of Rs. 3,2183.5 million malnly due to fixed costs,
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depreciation and amortization of the infrastructure
projeot. Other income during the year is Rs. 49.7 milion
(June 30, 2017: Rs. 128.9 miilion) comprising of the
interest income on the deposits held with commercial
banks. During the year, the Company has also provided
for taxation of Rs. 24.5 million and recognized deferred
tax of Rs. 603.5 million, mainly on account of tax losses
arising due to accelerated tax depreciation. Net |oss
after taxis Rs. 2,634.6 million with an EPS of Rs. (1.733).

These are summarized below:

Rupees in 000"
{3,213,535)
578,965
(2,34,570)
Rs. (1.733)

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss after tax

EPS- Basic & Diluted

APPROPRIATION

The Board of directors has not recommended any
dividends and / or bonus for the financial year 2018
due to losses during the first year of operations as
explained in the preceding paragraph. Moreover, this
recommendation is in line with the overall finanoing plan
shared with the investors.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions entered into are at arm's
length basis which were reviewed and approved by the
Audit Committee as well as the Board of Directors of
your Gompany in compliance with the Listed Companies
{Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017 and
the requirements of the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and the Companies Act, 2017. The
Company maintains a thorough and complete record
of all such transaetions. The details of related party
transactions are disclosed in note 27 of the financial
statements of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCIAL
REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Directors of your Company are aware of their
of responsibilities under the Code of Corporate
Governanee, the listing requirements of Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited and the Financial Reporting
framework of Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan and confirm that throughout the year 2017-18
the following has been complied with:

¢ The financial statements, prepared by the
management of the Company, present fairly its state
of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity.

¢ Proper books of account have been maintained by
the Company.




Appropriate  accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based ¢n
reasonable and prudent judgment.

international Accounting Standards, as applicable
in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of
financial statements,

The system of internal control is sound In design and
has been effectively implemented and mcnitored
with which the Direotors concur.

There are ne significant dcubts upon the Company's
ability to continue as a going cencern.

There has been no material departure from the
best practices of ccrpcrate governance, as per
Regulations.

There in ne purchase/sale of shares of the ccmpany
by its directors, CEQ, CFO, Company Secretary
and their spouses and minor children. Pattern cf
shareholding has been given separately.

Detail cf shares held by associated undertakings and
related persons (has been given separately).

Statement of the Beard meetings held during the
year and attendance by each directcr.

» Key finanoial data for last six years (has been given
separately).

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Beard of Directors has established an efficient
system of internal financial controls, for ensuring effective
and efficient oonduct of operations, safeguarding of
Company assets, compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and reliable financial reporting. The
independent internal Audit function of PIBT regularly
appraises and monitors the implementation of finangial
controls, whereas the Audit Committeg reviews the
effectiveness of the internal centrol framework and
financial statements on quarterly basis.

PROVIDENT FUND

Your Company provides retirement benefit to its
employees. This includes a contributory Provident Fund
for all permanent employees. The value of investments
ef provident fund based on their un-audited accounts
as on June 30, 2018 was Rs. 61,833 millien.

Your Cempany ensures that all the Direotcrs of the
Board comply with the requirements of Direotors
Training Certification as per the Listed Ccmpanies (Cede
of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017, All of your
directors have either obtained the Certificaticn under
Director’s Training Program conducted by local and
foreign institutes or are exempt from suoh requiremernt.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year five (05) meetings of the Board of Directors were held, Attendanoe by the Directors is as follows:

Name of Directors

Captain Haleem A. Siddiqui
Mr. Sharique A. Siddigui

Meetings attended

Name of Directors

‘Meetings attended

Syed Nizam A. Shah - -
Captain Zalar Igbal Awan .

Mr, Aasim A. Siddiqui

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has approved a "Remuneration
Policy for Directors and Members of Senior” i-e
Chairman, non-executive directors and independent
direetors are entitled only for the fee for attending the
meetings. The levels of remuneration are appropriate
and commensurate with the level of responsibility and
expertise to govern the company successfully and with
value additton.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

. Mr, Ali Raza Siddiqui
| M. Masood Ahmed Usmani |

The Article of Association of the Company permits Board
of Directors to determine and approve the remuneration
of a director for attending meetings of the Board of
Directors or its Committees from time to time,

During the year four (04) meetings of the Audit Committee (AC) and two (02) meetings of the Human
Resource & Remuneration Cecmmittee (HRC) were held. Attendance by thc membcrs is as fcllows:

AC Meetings

Name of AC members attended

Syed Nizam A. Shah | 4 T SyedNizam A, Shah

| —
Mr. Ali Raza Siddiqui

Mr. M. Masood Ahmed Usmani

AUDITORS

The auditors M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered
Accountants retire and being eligible they have offered
themselves for reappointment. The Audit Committee has
reoommended the reappointment of the retiring auditors

HRC Mestings

Name of HRC members attended

S -
'Mr. Sharique A. Siddigui

M, Ali Raza Siddiqui

CODE OF ETHICS & BUSINESS PBINCIPLES

The Board has adopted the Statement of Ethics and
Business Principles, which Is signed and acknowledged
by all the Directors and employees of your Company
who are required to abide by the Code.

for the year ending June 30, 2019 and the Board agrees
to the recommendation of the Audit Committee.

GREEN OPERATIONS

PIBT is the first handling facility to comply with World Bank's standards of environment pollution control. In this
respeot, PIBT has developed an Environmental Management Plan (EMP) in compliance with applicable laws
& regulations of Pakistan, IFC's performance standards and World Bank Group Environment Health & Safety
Guidelines.

These aspeots of the EMP and the related regulations eto. had been forwarded to and agreed upon with the Givil
Works and Equipment Supply Contractor(s), and have been implemented over the ocourse of construction of the
terminal, and are monitored and updated regularty.

Key aspects of the EMP are:
* Dust emission control » ¢ Solid waste Management

» Noise pollution control ¢ Dredge material disposal Management
* Waste water management » Biodiversity conservation & sustainable natural -
| resources management ’
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The development of an enterprise is inextricably linked
to the welfare and well-being of the pcople associated
with it, Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited
embraces responsibility for the impact of its activities on
the environment, employers, communitles and all other
stakeholders of the public sphere.

As part of its Corporate Social Responsibility Program,
the Company is striving fowards the objective cf
protection and long term viabilty of the coastal
ecogystems, espeoially mangroves of the northern
creeks of the Indus delta (the area controlled by
Port Qasim Authority) through restoration of the
degraded mangroves forests in the Indus Delta, As
part of its commitment, the Company arranges regular
maintenance for conservation of the plantation at an area
of 500 hectares within Port Qasim jurisdiction through
engaging local community laborers. In addition to that,
the Company has started plantation and maintenance
of mangroves alongside the trestle area on site which
will support the dust emission ccnirol plan and help
sustain the ecosystems of the area.

During the year, your Company has also become
the founder member of "Karachi Conservation”, a
national initiative driven by IUCN {International Unlon
for Conservation of Nature) In collaboration with PQA
and the private seotor with the objective of promioting
blodiversity and environmental censervation in Karachi
in general and Port Qasim Area in particular.

Moreover, the Company organized The Indus Hospital
(TIH) Voluntary Blood Donaticn Drive at the terminal in
support of TIH's commitment to launch Pakistan first
centralized blood center and overall vision of providing
excellent healthcare free of cost. The employees'
participation was enoouraging as many of them were
excited to contribute 1o community service through
blood donation.

AKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your directors take this cpportunity to express their
gratitude to all the stakeholders for their confidence,
oontinued support and commitment to the Project.

We would like to thank our valued shareholders in
the general public, the Institutional Invesiors in the
Company, Foreign and Local Lenders for investing
oonfidence among all the stakeholders of the Project.

For and on behalf of Beard of Directors

Sharique Azim Siddiqui
Chief Executive Officer

Capt. Zafar lgbal Awan
Direotor

Karachi: October 03, 2018
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oIX YEARS AT A GLANCE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -

PROFIT & LOSS SUMMARY*
Turnover - net 1,960,607 - - - - -
Gross Loss 816,781 - - - -
Other Income 49,734 128,921 112,307 181,040 6,068 8,142
Profit / (Loss) Before Taxation 3,213,535 48,400 58,383 126,901 (27,769) (31,018)
Profit / (Loss) After Taxation 2,634,570 26,856 35,060 81,381 (16,868) (20,747)
BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY
Non-Current Assets PYRGRRIE 25489,369 16,871,219 6,416,287 4,064,542 3,163,273
Current Assets UCNLROYE 3,036,569 2,427,049 1,411,245 2,506,345 87,728 -
Capital Expenditure during the year INERRRE 8,504,488 10,585,984 2,315,678 837,683 1,842,901
Share Capital LSRN 14,859,959 12,706,793 7,586,145 545766 545,766

Share Holders' Equity PRPeRYE 14,956,945 12,776,921 7,621,213 499,453 516,321
Advance / Subscription against pro- :

osed issue of right shares 6,066,330 2,105,000
on-Current Liabilities IEEYOREE 12,429,909 6,034,041 159,329 8,278 -
Current Liabilities 4,359,661 1,139,084 487,306 48,990 16,826 629,680

CASH FLOW SUMMARY

Sg‘e%?iﬁg(xg?ﬁi{{gs/ generated from CEXVDY (1287,111) 1,014,483 248,532 (643.614) 571,547

Net cash (used in) / generated from
Investing ctivilie% 9 (WREYNAUSR  (8,503,339) (10,581,645) (2,311,584)  (792,333) {1,857,881)

Net cash {used in) / generated frcm
Financing(Activilie)s 9 (191,001)

Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Bank WREIREEY  (309,034) 787,314 (1,115,506) 2498549  (17,269)

9,481,415 10,354,376 947,456 3,925,496 1,299,065

ash and Bank Balance at beginning of REWEEWIGY 2,197,437 1,410,123 2,525,719 27,170 44,439

$ash and Bank Balance at end of the PYRIY 1,888,403 2,197,437 1,410,123 2525719 27170
STATISTICS

Break up Value Per Ordinary Share (Rs.) 10.07 10.06 10.05 9.15 9.46
Market Value Per Ordinary Share** (Rs.) 22.75 32.07 36.06 29.79 -
Earnings Per Ordinary Share (Rs.) 0.018 0030 0070  (0.020)  (0.140)

{Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

* As the Company commenced its commercial operations from July 3, 2017, therefore, the operational data has
only been provided for the year ended June 30, 2018.

**The Company was listed at the Karachi Stock Exchange Limited on December 23, 2013. The market value
rapresents closing rate of the Company's share as at the close of financial year.

Annual Report 2018 ) <




NDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Pakistan Intemational Bulk Terminal Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinicn

We have audited the annexed financial statements cf Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, and the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatcry information, and we state that we have obtained all the informaticn and explanations which, to the best
of our knowledge and belief, were necessary fcr the purposes of the sudit.

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according tc the explanations given to us, the statement
cf financial positicn, the statement cf profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
cash flows and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the infcrmaticn required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2018 and of the profit, comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in acccrdance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under thoso standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of cur report. We are independent ¢f the Ccmpany in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Gode of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. Thcse matters were addressed in the contoxt of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

’ - PIBT | Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited




Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

As referred in note 18 to the financial statements, the
Company has filed several petitions challenging the
demands in respect of sales tax and income tax by
the revenue authorities. These demands are based
on arange of tax issues such as levy of sales tax on
import of plant, machinery and equipment and on
services on royalty, levy of income tax on import of
plant, machinery and equipment and adjustment of
input tax.

Due to the significance of the amounts involved
in such matters and the inherent uncertainties in
respect of their ultimate outcome, the management
judgements and estimates in relation to such
contingencies may be complex and can significantly
impact the financial statements, For such reasons
we have considered the contingencies as a key
audit matter.

As referred to in note 3.1 to the accompanying
financial statements, the Companies Act, 2017
became applicable for the first time for the preparation
of the Company's annual financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

The Companies Act, 2017 forms an integral part
of the statutory financial reporting framework as
applicable to the Company and amongst others,
presoribes the nature and oontent of disclosures
in relation to various elements of the financial
statements.

In the case of the Company, specific additional
disclosures and changes to the existing disolosures
have been included in the financial statements as
referred to note 3.4.1 to the financial statements.

The above changes and enhancements in the
financial statements are considered important
and a key audit matter because of the volume
and significanoce of the changes in the financial
statements resulting from the transition to the new
reporting requirements under the Companies Aot,
2017.

Our key audit procedures in respect of contingent
tax liabilities included, amongst cothers, a review
of the correspondence of the Company with
the relevant authorities, tax advisors and legal
advisors, including judgments or orders passed by
the competent authorities in relation to the issues
involved or matters which have similarities with the
issues involved.

We obtained and reviewed confirmations from the
Company's external advisors for their views en the
legal position of the Company in relation to the
centingent tax matters.

We involved our internal tax professionals to assess
management's conclusions on contingent tax
matters and to evaluate the consistency of such
conclusions with the views of the external tax
advisors engaged by the Company.

We also evaluated the adequacy of disclosures
made in respect of the contingent tax liabilities in
accordanoe with the requirements of the financial
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Preparation of financial statements under the Companies Act, 2017

We assessed the procedures applied by the
management for identification of the changes
required in the financial statements due to the
application of the Companies Act, 2017. We
considered the adequacy and appropriateness of the
additional disclosures and changes to the previous
disclosures based on the new requirements. We
also evaluated the sources of information used by
the management for the preparation of the above
referred disolosures and the internal consistency of
such disclosures with other elements of the financial
statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Therecn

Management is responsible for the other Information. The other informaticn comprises the information included in
the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance coriclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financiat statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing se, consider whether the other informatien is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Respensibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud er error.

in preparing the financial stalements, management is responsible fer assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going ooncern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going cencern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to llquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for everseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with I1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
anse from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit In order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of acoounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 10 events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 1o continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attentien in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. Hewever, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transaetions and events in a manner that aghieves
fair presentation.
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We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contrc! that we identify during
our audit,

We also provide the board of directors with a staterent that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independenoe, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters ccmmunicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulaticn precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter shculd not be ccmmunioated in our repert

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communicaticn.

Report on Cther Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based cn our audit, we further repcrt that in our opinion:

a) proper books of acccunt have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of ccmprehensive inccme,
the statement of cash flows, the statement of changes in equity and together with the notes thereon have

been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the bcoks
of acccunt and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guafantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Shabbir Yunus.

EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants

Plaoe: Karachi
Date: 03 QOctober 2018

o Annual Report 2018 @ ‘




>

BALANCE SHEET

as at June 30, 2018

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and egquipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax

GURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares
Trade debts
Advances, trade deposits and prepayments
Other receivables
Sales tax refundable
Taxation - net
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised capital
2,000,000,000 {(2017: 1,500,000,000) ordinary
shares of Rs. 10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up oapital
1.485,995,900 (2017: 1,485,995,900) ordinary
shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in oash
(Aooumulated loss) / Unappropriated profit

NQN-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term financing
Retention money ~ EPC ocntractor
Staff compensated absences

GCURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Current maturity of long-terrn financing

Gurrent maturity of retention money — EPC confractor

Accrued interest
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

~NOo O

14

15

16

17
16

16
18

2018

2017

The annexed notes from 1 1o 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

e | Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited

26,679,521 25,084,550
383,751 317,684
690,608 87,135

27,753,880 25,489,369

28,406 -
259,529 -
43,477 15,017
1,148 115,380
461,967 655,002
377,720 256,967
232,070 1,994,203
1,404,317 3,036,569

29,158,197 28,525,938

20,000,000 15,000,000

14,859,859 14,859,959

(2,537,583) 06,086

12,322,376 14,956,945

12,449,253 12,085,131

- 327,396
26,907 17,382
12,476,160 12,429,900
1,903,161 60,403
884,541 382,005
982,189 654,793
589,770 41,883
4,359,661 1,139,084
29,158,197 28,625,938
Director




PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

for the year ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note  -—-—--- {Rupees in ‘000)-------
Turnover — net 19 1,960,607 -
Cost of services 20 (2.777,388) -
Gross loss {816,781) -
Administrative and general expenses 21 {315,486) {80,521)
Other income _ 22 49,734 128,921
Finance cost (1,264,601) -
Other expense — exchange loss (866,401) -
(Loss) / profit before taxation (3,213,535} 48,400
Taxation 23 578,965 (21,542)
Net {loss) / profit for the year (2,634,570 26,858
(Restated)
{Loss) / earnings per share — basic and diluted 24 (Rs. 1.733) Rs. 0.018

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017

Net {loss) / profit for the year {2,634,570) 26,858

Other comprehensive income - -

Totai comprehensive {loss) / income for the year (2,634,570} 26,858

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financlal statements,

Chief Executive . Chief Financial Officer Director

» | Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended June 30, 2018

GASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AGTIVITIES

(Loss) / profit before taxation
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation
Amortization
Mark-up on long term financing
Unrealized exchange loss
Staff compensated absences
Gain on sale of fixed assets

Decrease / (increase) in current assets
Stores and spares
Trade debts
Advances, deposits and prepayments
Other receivables
Sales tax refundable
Bank balance under lien

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Cash generated from / (used in) operations

Retention money

Taxes paid

Mark-up paid

Staff compensated absences paid
Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property, plant and equipment
Additions to intangible assets
Additions to capital work in progress
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANGING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares

(Repayment of) / proceeds from long term financing

Transaction costs paid on long term financing

Net cash {used in) / generated from financing activities

Nst decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of fhe year

2018

2017

(3,213,535) 48,400
1,194,416 2,551
19,308 13
1,264,601 -
881,698 -
10,027 443
(945) (244)
3,349,105 2,763
(28,406) -
(259,520) -
(28,460) (2,004)
114,232 (116,150)
193,035 (491,514)
1,000 (105,800)
(8,128) (714,558)
120,649 (409,625)
248,001 (1,073,020)

- 33,763
(145,261) (247,595)
(520,752) -
(502) (259)
(418,424) (1,287,111)
(1,078,616) (38,206)
(11,050) (220)
(64,257) (8,466,062)
2,215 1,150
(1,351,708)  (8,503,333)
- 2,153,166
(191,001) 7,350,739
- (22,490)
(191,001) 9,481,415
(1,761,133) (309,034)
1,888,403 2,197,437
127,270 1,888,403

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an 'integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

Direotor

Annual Report 2018 ®




>

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended June 30, 2018

Balance as at June 30, 2016

Issue of right shares

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at June 30, 2017

Net loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive Icss for the year

Balance as at June 30, 2018

1ssued, Revenue
subscribed reserve - Total
and paid-up  accumulated
capital profit / (loss)
------------- (Rupees in '000)-----=-=-----
12,706,793 70,128 12,776,921
2,153,166 - 2,153,166
- 26,858 26,858
- 26,858 26,858
14,859,959 96,986 14,956,945
- (2,634,570) {2,634 ,570)
- (2,634,570) (2,634,570)
14,859,959 (2,537,533) _ 12,322,376

The annexed notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended June 30, 2018

1.

i1,

1.2,

3.1.

3.2,

3.3.

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited (the Company} was incorporated under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance) on March 22, 2010 as a private limited company.
Subsequently, it was converted to an unauoted public limited company and later on, listed on the
Pakistan Stock Exchange on December 23, 2013,

Geographioal location and address of business units

Registered The Company’s registered office is situated at 2nd floor, Business Plaza, Mumtaz
office Hassan Road, Karachl.

Terminal ~ The Company's terminal is situated at NWIZ/LL/02, North Western Industrial Zone, Port
Qasim Authority.

Tho Company has entered into a Build Operate Transfer (BOT) contract with Port Qasim Authority
(PQA) on November 06, 2010 for the construction, development, operations and management of
a coal and clinker / cement terminal at Port Muhammad Bin Oasim for a period of thirty years. The
Company commenced its commercial operations trom July 03, 2017,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS OCCURRED DURING THE YEAR

- Asreferred in note 1.2 to the acoompanying financial statements, the Company has commenoed its
operations and trading activities in line with its strategic buslness plan.

- For a detailed discussion about the Company's performance, refer to the Directors’ Report.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs} issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (JASB} as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Act have been followed.

The Company has not applied IFRIC 12 "Service Concession Agreements” in preparation of these
financial statements, The SECP vide its SRO No. 24 (1} / 2012 dated January 16, 2012 has granted
waiver in respect of application of IFRIC 12 to all Companies. However, the SECP made it mandatory
to disclose the impact on the results of application of IFRIC-12 (Refer note 28).

Acoounting convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
Significant accounting judgements, estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confcrmity with approved accounting standards requires the
use of certain critical aocounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in
the process of applying the Ccmpany’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually
evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised In the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affeoted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended June 30, 2018

3.4,

3.4.1.

3.4.2,

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgments
and estimates which are significant to the financial statements:

Notes
¢ determining the residual values and useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangibles. 41,42, 5and 6
* provision against trade debts 44and 9
¢ provisicn for tax and deferred tax 4.9,7,12and 23

Standards, interpretations and amendments applicable to financial statements

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with
those of the previous financial year except as described below:

New standards, amendments and interpretations

The Company has adopted the following amendments to [FRSs which became effective for the current
year:

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative - (Amendment)
IAS 12 Income Taxes — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Icsses (Amendments)

The adoption of the above amendments to accounting standards did not have any materiat effect on
the financial statements.

The Act is applicable from the current year and has brought certain changes with regard to the
preparation and presentation of these financial statements. The significant changes include changes in
nomenclature cf the primary statements, disclosure cf significant transactions and events (refer note 2),
management assessment of sufficiency of tax provision (refer note 23.2), and disclosure requirements
for related parties (refer note 26 and 27) etc.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

The follewing revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below
against the respective standard or interpretation:

Effective date
{annual perieds
beginning ¢cn or

after)
Standard or Interpretation
IFRS 2 - Share-based Payments — Classification and Measurement of 01 January 2018
Share-based Payments Transactions (Amendments)
IFRS 4 -  Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with 01 January 2018
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts — (Amendments)
IFRS9 - Financial Instruments 01 July 2018

IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment in
Assooiates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Assceiate or Joint Venture (Amendment)  Not yet finalized

IFRS 15— Revenue from Contracts with Customers 01 July 2018
IFRS 16 — Leases 01 January 2019
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Effective date
{annual pericds
beginning on or

after)

IAS19 -~  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments) 01 January 2019
[AS 28— Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures ~ (Amendments) 01 January 2019
IAS 40~  Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments) 01 January 2018
IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 01 January 2018
IFRIC 28 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 01 January 2019

The above standards and interpretations are not expected to have any material impact on the
Company'’s financial statements in the period of initial application except for IFRS-15 — Reverue from

Contracts with Customers. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this Standard on the
financial statements.

In addition to the above standards and interpretations, improverments to various accounting standards
have also been issued by the IASB in December 2016 and December 2017, Such improvements are
generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018 and 01 January 2019
respectively. The Company expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any Impact
on the Gompany's financial statements in the period of initial application.

The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting {the Gonceptual
Framework) in March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
for preparers of financial statements who develop accounting policies based on the Gonceptual
Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the cencepts override
those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Gonceptual Framework
is to assist IASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies
if there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the
standards. '

Further, following new standards have been issued by I1ASB which are yet to be notified by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for tha purposo of applicability in Pakistan.

IASB Effeclive date
(annual periods
beginning
on or after)
Standard
IFRS 14 - Rogulatory Deferral Accounts 01 January 2016
IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts 01 January 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACOOQUNTING POLICIES
Property, plant and equipment
Operating assets

Operating assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss using straight line methcd whereby cosls of
assets, less their residual values are written off over their estimated useful lives at the rates specified in
note 5.1 to the financial stataments. Daprcciation on additions is charged from the month in which the
asset is available to use upto the month preceding the disposal. Assets residual values, useful lives and
mothods aro roviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended June 30, 2018

4.2,

4.3.

4.4,

4.5,

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date for indication
that an asset may be impaired and carrying vaiues may not be recovered, If any such indication
exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash
generating units are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of property,
plant and equipment is the groater of net selling price and value in use.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred, Major
renewals and improvements, if any, are capitalized when it is probable that respective future economic
benefits will flow to the Company.

An itern of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
procceds with the carrying amount of the relevant assets. These are included in the staternent of profit
or loss in the period in which they arise,

Capital work-in-progress

These are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with
spegcific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under this head. These
are transferred to specific assets as and when these assets are available for use.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable
to the asset will flow to the enterprise and that the cost of such asset can also be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially stated at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Costs incurred on the acquisition of computer
software are capitalized and are amortized on straight line basis over their estimated useful life.
Amortization is charged in the month in which the asset is put to use at the rates stated in note 5 to
the financial statements.

Development expenditure incurred on the project is capitalized when its future recoverability can
rcasonably be regarded as assured. These are amortized over their useful life on straight line basis
commencing from the date of completion of the project, on a monthly pro-rata basis,

Useful lives of intangible assets are roviewed, at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate.

The carrying value of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each financial year end when
events or changes in circumstances, indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Stores and spares

Stores and spare parts are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is determined using
weighted average cost basis except for those in transit which are stated at invoice price plus other
charges paid thereon up to the statement of financial position date. Provision is made annually in the
financial statements for slow moving and obsolete items if required.

Trade debts

Trade debts originated by the Company are recognised and carried at original invoice amounts less
prevision for doubtful debts. Provision for doubtful debts is based on the management’s assessment
of customers’ outstanding balanccs and creditworthiness. Bad debts are written-off when identified.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash cquivalents consist of cash in hand and
cash at banks.
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4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

4.10.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provision of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual
right to future cash flows from the asset expires or is transferred along with the risk and reward of
ownership of the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when obligation is discharged, cancelled
or expired. Any gain or loss on de-recogniticn of the financial agset and liability is reccgnized in the
statement of profit ¢r loss of the current period.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial
statements only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off and the Company intends
to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income
and expense items of such assets and liabilities are also offset and the net amount is reported in the
financial statements.

Impairment of financial assets

Afinancial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objeoctive evidence
that it is impaired. A finanoial asset is censidered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one
or more events have had a negative effeot on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxablo income at the current rates of taxation after taking into
account tax credits and rebates available, if any, or minimum tax on turnover or Alternate Ccrpcrate
Tax whichever is higher and tax paid on final tax regime basis. Alternate Corporate Tax is calculated in
accordance with the provisions of Section 113¢ of Income Tax Ordinanoe.

Deferrad

Deforred tax is provided in full using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences
arising at the statement cf financial position date, between the tax bases of the assets and the liabilities
and their carrying amounts. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable tempcrary
differenoes and deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differenoes, unused tax
losses and unused tax oredits to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profits will
be available against whioh these ¢an be utilised.

Deferred tax is oalculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences
reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enaoted by the statement of
financial position date. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of inoome expected
to be subjeot to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirement of Accounting Technical
Release - 27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, Deferred tax is charged or credited
to statement of profit or loss.

Staff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a funded provident fund scheme for all its eligible employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of
basio salary.

Compensated absenoes

The Company provides a faoility to its employees for aocumulating their annual earned leave under an
unfunded soheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended June 30, 2018

4.11.

4.12,

413,

4.14.

4.15.

4.186.

4.47.

4.18.

Provisions are made to cover the obligation under the scheme on accrual basis and are charged as an
expense. Accrual for compensated absences for employees is calculated on the basis of two month's
gross salary. The amount cf liability recognized in the statement of financial position is calculated by
the Company using the above basis as the difference in liability is not expeoted to be material using
the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to
be paid in future for goods and services received whether or not billed to the Company.

Interest / mark-up bearing loans and borrowings

All foans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less
directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings are subseqguently stated at amortised cost with any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are dereoognised as
well as through amortisation process.

Revenue recognition

Revenues from port operations are recognised when service is rendered. Revenue is recognised to
the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
exoluding discounts, rebates and government levigs, if any.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing oosts that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of assets and incurred
during the period in connection with the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use are capitalised as a part of the cost of related asset. All other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense In the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resouroes embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the outflow can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at each statement of financial pcsiticn date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Foreign ourrency translaticns

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistani Rupee (functional currency) using the
exohange rates prevailing on the date of the transacticn. Monetary assets and liabilities in fcreign
ourrencies are re-translated into Pakistani Rupee using the exchange rate prevailing at the statement
of financial position. Exohange differences are taken to statement of profit or loss.

Functional and presentation currency

Theses financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional end
presentation currency.

Other income

Profit on saving acoounts is recognised on accrual basis.
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5.1.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2018 2017
Note ~  --eeee- (Rupees in ‘000)-------
Operating assets 5.1 26,614,209 76,080
Capital work-in-progress 52 65,312 25,008,470

26,679,521 25,084,550

Operating assets:

Cost Accumulated depreciation Book value Uselul lite
As at Additions/ As at Asat  Chargeforlhe  Asat As at
July 01, (disposals) June 30, July 01, _Year/ Juna 30, June 30, Years
2017 2018 2017 {disposals) 2016 2018
{Rupees In '000)
Owned
Pert Infrastrueture - 13,142,104 13,142,104 - 437,992 437,092 12,704,112 30
Leasehold Improvemenls - 3847123 3847123 - 126,237 126,237 3,718,886 30
Buildings - 1,077,205 1,077,205 - 52,613 59,613 1,024,692 20
Cargc Handling Equipment - 7,168046 7,186,046 - 359,347 359,347 6,627,549 20
Termina! Equipment . 963,079 963,079 - 94,143 94,143 863,036 10
Port Power Generatien - 1,426,977 1,426,977 - 71,349 71,349 1,355,628 20
Qffice equipment 14,721 42,676 57,212 9,061 17,765 27,659 24,563 3
(185) )
Vehicles 113,967 28,811 135,351 42,627 26,781 63,145 72,206 3-5
(7,427} (6,263)
Fumilure and fixiures 5,786 18,896 24,682 5,786 6,299 12,035 12,597 3
2018 134,474 27733817 27,860,670 53,394 1,194,416 1,246,470 26,614,209
(7.612) (6,340)
Cost Accumulaled depreciatien Book value Uselul lile
As at Additions/ As at Asat  Chargeforthe  Asat As at
July 01, (disposals) June 30, Juty 01, lYear/ June 30, Junad0,  Years
2016 2017 2018 {dispcsals) 2017 2017
................................................ (Rupees in '000) «+vvemrrmmvnenenn
Owned
Office equipmant 8,837 6,184 14,721 7,720 2,261 9,961 4,740 3
Vehicles 86,175 32,022 113,967 27,018 18,933 42,627 71340 3-5
{4,230) (3,324)
Fumiture and fixtures 5,786 . 5,786 5,684 102 5,786 . 3
2017 ) 100,498 38,288 134,474 40,422 21,298 58,394 76,080
{4,230) {3.324)

Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as under:

2018 2017
Note ----—-- {Rupees in '00Q)-------
Cost of services / capital work-in-progress 20 1,143,581 18,745
Administrative and general expenses 21 50,835 2,551
1,194,418 21,296
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended June 30, 2018

5.1.2. Details of assets disposed of during the year:

wensceaeeeeas (RUPEES I OO0} oo seeememeeemeneens Parlicutars of buyer
. . Aocumulated  Book Sale Cain/ Mods ef
Particuiars Cost depreciation - value proceeds (loss) disposal Name Status Address
Vahicle 3,833 2,683 1,150 1,350 206 Negolialion M/s AutoMall Nore Karechi
Vehicle 3,472 3,472 - 750 750  Negotiation M/s Automall None Karachl
Laptop 185 7 108 9 0 wsuencacam | EVGHES pcome Kaoh
Molor bike 122 106 14 16 4 Company policy Hammad ur Rehman  Employes Karachi
June 30, 2018 7,512 6,340 1,272 2,215 945
June 30,2017 4,230 3,324 906 1,150 244
2018 2017
Note ~  ---eve- (Rupess In ‘000)-------
5.2.  Capital work-in-progress
Opening balance 25,008,470 16,415,584
Additions during the period 2,876,034 8,592,886
Transfers to operating fixed assets 5.1 (27,733,817) -
Transfers to intangibles 6 (85,375) -
Closing balance : 65,312 25,008,470
6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost Accumulated depreciation  Book value Uselful life
As at Asat Asat  Charge Asat Asat
July 01, Addilions June 30, July 01, forthe June30, June 30, Years
2017 2018 2017 year 2018 2018
(Rupees in "000) --------=--er s e
Right 1o use infrastructure facilties (Note 8.1) 386,104 - 386,104 66,717 10580 79,297 306,807 30
Torminal operating systom - 85035 85035 - 8,493 8,498 76,537 10
Computer software 1,178 340 1,516 879 230 1,109 407 3
2018 387,280 85375 472,855 59,596 19,308 88,904 383,751
Cost Accumulated deprecigtion  Book valug  Useful life
As at Asat Asal Charge Asat Asat
July 01, Additions June 30, July01, forthe June30, June30, Years
20186 2017 2016 year 2017 2017
(Hupees in 'OOO) .....................................
Right to uso infraslruoture facilities (Noto 8.1 338,104 - 386,104 55,847 12870 68,717 317,387 30
Computer software 956 220 1,176 732 147 879 297 3
2017 387,060 220 387,280 55,679 13,017 59,596 317,084
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6.1.  This represents Peripheral Development Charges (PDC) of leasehold land paid to Port Qasim Authority
as per build, operate and transfer (BOT) contract fer the grant of the right to use the site and related
facilities for the construction, management and operation of the coal and clinker / cement terminal.

6.2,  Amortization charge for the year has been allocated as under:

2018 2017
Note --—----(Rupess in '000)-------
Cost of serviees / capital work-in-progress 20 19,176 13,004
Administrative and general expenses 21 132 13
19,308 13,017
7. DEFERRED TAX
Arising on taxable temporary difference -
- accelerated depreciation (1,627,270) -
Arising on deductible temporary difference
- amortization 10,410 -
- pre-commencement expenses 56,521 87,135
- tax losses 2,250,947 -
690,608 87,135
8, STORES AND SPARES
Stores 18,442 -
Spares 9,964 -
28,406 -
9, TRADE DEBTS - unsecured
Considered good 259,629 -
The ageing of trade debts is as follows:
Up to 30 days 215,416 -
3110 60 days 30,165 -
61 1o 90 days 7,265 -
Over 90 days . 6,683 -
259,529 -
10. ADVANCES, TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Advances 1,405 -
Deposits - 2,331 2,315
Prepayments 39,741 12,702
: 43,477 15,017
1. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Customers - 113,419
Others 1,148 1,961
1,148 115,380

12, SALES TAX REFUNDABLE AND TAXATION - net

Includes sales tax and income tax levies of Rs. 676.185 million and Rs. 227.384 million respectively,
which were charged and oclleoted by the Government Authorities at the time of import of partial
shipments of project equipment as fully explained in note 18.1.1. These have been adjusted under
protest with the corresponding tax liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended June 30, 2018

13.

13.1.

i3.2.
13.3.

14,
14.1.

15,

15.1.

15.2.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

2018 207
Note ~  ------- (Rupees in '000)-------

With conventicnal banks:
- in current account 30 702
- in savings acoount 13.2 &13.3 230,128 1,929,335
230,158 1,930,037

With isiamic banks:

- in ourrent acoount - 9
- in savings acoount 13.2 594 63,024
594 63,033
230,752 1,993,070
Cash in hand 1,318 1,133
232,070 1,994 203

Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and bank balances 13 232,070 1,994,203
Bank balance under lien 13.3 (104,800) (105,800)
127,270 1,888,403

These carry profit at the rates ranging from 4.5 to 6.26 peroent (2017: 4.5 to 6.25 percent) per annum.

Bank balanoes of Rs.104.8 million were under lien with bank against letters of guarantee as described
in note 18.2.4

AUTHORISED CAPITAL

During the year, members of the Company, in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on May 28,
2018, approved increase in the Autharized Share Capital of the Company from PKR 15,000,000,000/-
divided into 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of PKR 10 each to PKR 20,000,000,000/- divided into
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of PKR 10 each by creation of 500,000,000 additional ordinary shares
of PKR 10 each to rank pari passu in every respect with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

Number of sharee 2018 2017
2018 2017 e (Rupees in '000)-------
Ordinary shares ef Rs,10/- each
fully paid in cash

1,485,995,900 1,270,679,294  Opening balance 14,859,959 12,706,793
- 215,310,006 Issucd during the year in cash - 2,153,166
1,485,935,900 1,485,995,900  Closing balance 14,859,959 14,859,959

The Board of Directors of the Company, in their meeting held on May 28, 2018 approved increase in
issued, subscribed and paid up capital from PKR 14,859,859,900 divided into 1,488,599,590 ordinary
shares to PKR 17,886,964,620 divided into 1,788,696,462 ordinary shares by issue of 300,098,872
shares by way of right issue at the rate of 20.195 shares for every 100 ordinary shares. Tha entire
process of allotment of right shares was completed on August 31, 2018,

Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to their shareholding.
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16. LONG TERM FINANCING - secured

2018 2017
Note Tolal Long Term Current Total Long Term Curent
Maturity Malurity
Foreign currency loans - (Rupees in '000)
Under finance facilily agreements
International Finence Corporation 16.1 3,133,391  2.923,035 209,456 2,687,352 2,603,377 33,475

OPEC Fund For Intemational Development  16.2 3,089,213 2,862,128 207,065 2645718 2,563,188 82,530
6,222,604 5,806,063 410,541 5333070 5,167,085 166,006

Local ourrency loans

Under ccmmercial facility agreements

Local debt - conventional facility 163 | 3,891,895 || 3,598,395 253,500 (| 3,864,203 (| 3,747,293 117.000
Local debl - musharaka facility 16.4 | 3,299,299 || 3,044,795 214,500 |{ 3,269,773 j| 3,170,773 99,000
7,111,180 0,043,190 468,000 7,134,060 6,918,006 216.000

13,333,794  12.448,263 834,541 12,467,130 12,085,131 382,005

16.1. The Company has entered into a loan agreement with International Finance Corporation (IFC) for an
amount of USD 26.5 million repayable in 18 semi-annual installments commenced from December 15,
2017, at a markup rate of 6 months' LIBOR + 5%.

16.2. The Company has entered into a loan agreement with OPEC Fund for International Development
(OFID) for an amount of USD 26.2 million repayable in 18 semi-annual installments commenced from
December 15, 2017, at a markup rate of 8 months' LIBOR + 5%.

16.3. The Company has entered into a Term Finance Facilty with five commercial banks namely Askari
Bank Limited, JS Bank Limited, NIB Bank Limited, Sindh Bank Limited and The Bank of Punjab for
an aggregate amount of Rs 3,900 million repayable in 18 semi-annual installments commenced from
December 15, 2017, at a mark-up rate of 6 months KIBOR + 3%. Faysal Bank is aoting as a syndioate
agent for the agreement.

16.4. The Company has sntered into a Musharaka agreement with four financial institutions namely Al Baraka
Bank (Pakistan) Limited, Dubai Islamic Bank Limited, Faysal Bank Limited and Meezan Bank Limited
for an aggregate amount of Rs. 3,300 million repayable in 18 semi-annual installments cornmenced
from December 15, 2017, at a markup rate of 8 months KIBOR + 3%. Faysal Bank Limited is acting
as a Musharaka agent for the agreement.

16.5. The Company may declare dividends subject to satisfaction of oertain financial covenants under the
facilities mentioned in notes 16.1 to 16.4,

16.6. The above long term financing (from notes 16.1 to 16.4) has been seoured, at 25% security margin, by
way of the following charges ranking pari passu among the lenders:

{) first ranking charge over mortgaged immovable properties
{i) first ranking charge over project hypothecated properties
{ii) first ranking lien over security acoount and deposits

{iv) assignment of the mortgaged project receivables

16.7. Current malurity inoludes principal amounting to Rs. 204.13 miliion and acorued interest includes
corresponding mark-up amounting to Rs. 540,93 million pertaining to semi - annuai installments payable
on June 15, 2018 under the facilities mentioned in notes 16.1 to 16.4, which was paid subsequent to
the year end on July 7, 2018 through advanees received from sponsors against subscription of right
shares.
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for the year ended June 30, 2018

17.

18.

18.1
18.1.1.

18.1.2.

18.1.8.

18.1.4.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Note 2018 2017
------- {Rupces in '000}-------
Creditors 169,680 56,761
Contractors 1,698,648 -
Accrued Liabilities 31,217 -
Workers' Welfare Fund 3,620 3,620
Withholding tax 96 22
1,903,161 60,403

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
CONTINGENCIES

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company filed petition nos 2262/2016 and 2535/2018
before the Honorable High Court of Sindh (SHC) challenging the levy of sales tax and income tax
imposed against the import of plant, machinery and equipment respectively. On October 26, 2016
and November 30, 2010 respectively, SHC granted stay orders against the above petitions direoting
the authorities to avoid any further coercive action against the Company, subjoot to provision of bank
guarantoe by the Company to the extent of the claim of the sales tax and income tax on the import
of plant, machinery and equipment, which the Company had duly provided. During the year, the
Company has filed supplementary petition before the Honorable Supreme Qourt of Pakistan (SC) to
the petitions filed above. Subsoquent to the year end, SHC passed orders directing the Nazir SHC to
encash fifty percent (50%) of the bank guarantees amounting to Rs. 422.10 million furished in suits
mentioned above in lieu of the SC's judgement in various appeals. Accordingly, the required payment
was deposited under protest with Nazir SHC. The management beliovos, based on the advice of its
iegal advisor that the grounds on which sales tax and income tax are levied do not attract the provision
of Sales Tax Act, 1920 and income Tax Ordinance 2001 and thus Is of the vicw that the eventual
outccme wili be in favour of the Company. Accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these
financial staterments.

Duringthe year, the Company hasfiled petition numbors 2481/2018 and 3694/2018 before the Honcrable
High Court of Sindh (SHC} on March 29, 2018 and May 10, 2018 respectively challenging the Orders-
in-Original No. 192/2018 and 459/2013 passed by the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB}, whereby the input
tax adjustment of Sales tax levied at the import stage of plant, machinery and equipment, was rendered
inadmissible and recovery proceedings were started by SRB. Subsequently SHC granted stay orders
against the said recovery proceedings and the case is in appeal. Concurrently without prejudice to the
above proceedings, the Company has also filed appeals before the Commissioner (Appeals) Sindh
Revenue Board against the above mentioned Orders-in-Original passed. The management believes,
based on the advice of its legal advisor that the input tax adjustment of sales tax is in accordance with
the provisions of applicable tax laws and thus is of the view that the eventual outcome will be in favour
of the Company. Aocordingly, no provision has been recorded in these financial statements.

During the year, the Company, in conjunction with other port operators in Port Qasim jurisdiotion, has
filed petition CP No. D-3421 of 2018 before the Honorable High Court of Sindh (SHC) ohallenging the
levy of sales tax on services on royalty payments to Port Qasim Authority, and SHC granted a stay
order on Aprit 80, 2018 initiating proceedings on the case. The management believes, based on the
advice of its legal advisor, that royalty payments to PQA do not attract the provision of Sindh Sales
Tax on Services Act, 2011 and thus is of the view that the eventual outcome will bo in favour of the
Company. Accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these financial statements.

The aggregate exposure of the above contingencios as at 30 June 2018 amounting to Rs. 1,077.918
million.
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18.2
18.2.1.

18.2.2.

18.2.3.

18.2.4,

19.

20.

20.1.

20.2.

COMMITMENTS

Performance bond issued by bani on behalf of the Company to PQA in pursuance of the Implementation
Agreement of USD 2.5 million amounted to Rs. 265 million {2017: Rs. 259 million),

Guarantee bonds issued by bank on behalf of the Company to the Nazir of the Honorable High Court
of Sindh in pursuance of the orders passed on the Company's petitions as fully disolosed in the nete
18.1.1 amounted to Rs. 858.20 million. Securities for the above mentioned guarantees have been
provided by the sponsors. Subsequent to the year end, the guarantees have been reduced to Rs.
429.10 million as fully disclosed in the above menticned note.

Capital expenditure contracted but remaining to be executed pertaining to the contract for civil works
construction amounted to Rs. Nil (2017: Rs. 1,224 million) and letters of credit pertaining to contracts
for equipment procurement amounted to Rs. 1,672 million (2017: 2,228 million)

The Company has provided a Custom Bonded Guarantee to Pakistan Customs Authority issued by
Faysal Bank Limited on behalf of the Company in accordance with the requirements of Section 554(6)
{d) of Customs Rules 2001 of USD 1 million amounting to Rs. 121.6 million (2017: Rs. 104.8 million).

2018 27
Note  -—-—---- {Rupees in '000)-------

TURNOVER — net
Sales 2,215,456 -
Less: sales tax , (254,849) -

1,960,607 -
COST OF SERVICES
Terminal handling and services 201 984,809 -
Salaries, wages and benefits 20.2 235,925 -
Terminal maintenance 43,965 -
Fuel, Power & Utilities 185,513 -
Insurance 83,283 -
Security 18,198 -
Office maintenance 25,489 -
Travelling and conveyance 24,842 -
Rent and rates 12,607 -
Depreciation 5.1.1 1,143,581 -
Amortization 6.2 19,176 -

2,777,388

This includos royalty paid dunng the year to Port Qasim Authority having registered offico situated at
Bin Qasim, Karachi-75020, Pakistan.

Includes Rs. 6.30 million in respeot of defined oontributory provident fund.
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NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended June 30, 2018

21, ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES
2018 2017
Note  ---—---- {Rupees in '000)-------
Salaries, wages and benefits 21.1 162,783 19,779
Travelling and conveyance 19,990 2,168
Auditors’ remuneration 21.2 2,338 1,339
Legal and professional charges 14,150 5,384
Office maintenance and other expenses 23,827 2,207
Insurance 5,740 402
Utilities 7,393 1,951
Fees and subscription 15,973 9,385
Rent, rates and taxes 3,772 14,343
Depreciation 5.1.1 50,835 2,551
Amortization 6.2 182 13
Liquldated damages - 18,500
Bank charges 8,553 2,499
315,486 80,521
21.1. Includes Rs. 4.20 million {(2017: Rs. 0.61 million) in respect of defined contributory provident fund.
21.2. Auditors’ remuneration
2018 2017
Note  ---—---- {Rupees in ‘000)-------
Statutory audit fee 1,262 695
Fee for review of half yearly accounts and certifications Q00 523
Out of pocket expenses 186 121
2,338 1,339
22, OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Profit on saving accounts - conventional 47,362 127,973
Profit on saving accounts - islamic 567 704
47,929 128,677
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 5.1.2 945 244
Liabilities no longer payable, written back 860 -
49,734 128,921
23. TAXATION
Current 24,598 43,596
Deferred {603,473) {22,057)
Prior - 3
234 (573,965) 21,542
23.1. The income tax assessments of the Company has been finalized up to and including the tax year
2017. The Company is subject to turnover tax under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
therefore, relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented.
23.2. Provision for tax has been provided in these financial statements for the current year in accordance
with requirements laid under Income Tax Ordinanoe, 2001 (ITO 2001). The provision for current year
tax represents minimum tax, The returns of income have been filed on due date and is treated as
deemed assessment order under section 120 of the ITO 2001. A comparison of last three years ot
income tax provision with tax assessed is presented below:
”» | Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited




24,

241,

24.2.

25.

25.1.

2017 2016 2015
------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------

Income tax provision for the year 43,596 37,119 58,582
Income tax as per tax assessment (43,520) (35,938) (69,734)
Excess / (short) 76 1,181 {(1,152)
EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diiuted
2018 2017
Note  -------(Rupees in "000)-------
(Loss) / profit after taxation (Rs in '000) (2,634,570) 26,858
Number of shares
(Restated)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 24.1 1,519,489,102  1,519,489,102

(Loss) / earning per share 24,2 (Rs. 1.733) Rs. 0.018

As fully disclosed in note 15.1, the Company has issued right shares during the year. The impact of
bonus element due to right issue is accounted for in the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding in the current and prior year.

There is no dilutive effect on basic earnings per share of the Company.

FINANCIAL RiSK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company'’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks i.e. market rigk (including currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and capital risk. The Company's overall risk management
program focusos on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potentiai adverse
effects on the Company's financial performance. '

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are
summarized below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates
may affect the Company's income cr the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The exposure of
other two risks and their management is explained below:

(i} interest rate risk

interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long term debt obligaticns with
floating interest rates, :

The management keeps on evaluating different options available for interest rate swaps. As
of statement of financial position date, the sensitivity on the Company’s barrowing costs to a
reasonable possible change of 100 basis points in KIBOR and 15 basis points in LIBOR is Rs.
80.28 million (2017: Rs. 80.80 million), with all other variables held constant.

(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables
and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency. The Company’s exposure t¢ foreign
ourrenoy risk relates primarily to its long term finances, accrued interest thereon, and trade and
other payables in foreign currency.
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for the year ended June 30, 2018

The foreign currency exposure will partly be covered as the Company’s billing will substantially
be determined in US Dcllars. Moreover, the management keeps on evaluating different options
available for hedging purposes. As of the statement of financial position date, the sensitivity on the
Company's foreign currency chligaticns to a reasonable possible change of Rs. 5 in USD-PKR
parity is Rs, 264.36 million (2017: Rs. 264.21 million), with all other variables held constant.

25.2. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring
credit exposure, limiting transactions with specific counter parties and continuously assessing the
credit worthiness of counter parties.

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations
to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit
risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to devclopmonts affecting a particular
industry.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on deposits, bank balances and trade debts. The Company
seeks to minimise the credit risk exposure through having oxposure only to customers/ parties
considered crodit worthy and obtaining securities where applicable. The maximum exposure to credit
risk as of the balance sheet date is Rs. 492.61 million (2017: Rs, 1,995,39 million),

Quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets can be assessed by reference to or the historical information
about counter party default rates external orodit ratings as shown below:

2918 2017
------- (Rupees in '000)-------
Trade debts
Customers with no defaults in the past one year 259,529 -

Customers with some defaults in past one year which have been
fully recovered

259,529 -

Cash with Banks

Al - 2,757

A1 594 68,760

A1+ 155,437 1,180,798

Al+ 74,721 740,757
230,752 1,893,070
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25.3.

25.4.

25.5.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its funding requirements. To guard
against the risk, the Company has diversified funding scurces and assets are managed with liquidity in
mind. The maturity profile is monitored to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained.

Year ended 30 June 2018 Loss
Cn than 3 3t012 1to 5
demand Months Months Years Totai
-=- (Rupees in '00Q) ----+---=-===---
Trade and other payables - 204,513 1,698,648 - 1,903,161
Long-term financing
including current maturity 745,058 - 1,836,509 16,985,509 19,567,310

Tetal _ 745,068 _ 204,513 3,635,157 16,985,509 21,470,471

Year ended 30 June 2017 Less
On than 3 3to12 1to5
demand Months Months Years Totai
-- (Rupees in '000) ----+--~=-c-ermmmmmre-
Trade and other payables - 56,783 3,820 - 60,403
Long-term financing
including current maturity - - 1,404,044 17,663,868 19,067,912
Totai - 56,783 1,407,664 17,663,868 19,123,315

Fair vaiues of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settlied, between
knowledgeable wiling parties in an arms-length transaction other than In a forced cr liquidaticn sale.
The carrying values of ali financlal assets and liabilities reflected in the financiai statements approximate
their fair values.

Fair value hierarchy
Financiai instruments carried at fair vaiue by valuation method, are categorized as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted market prices
Level 2 - Valuation Techniques (market observable)
Levei 3 - Valuation Techniques (ncn-market observable)

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Ccmpany's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios,
strong credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for
its existing and potential investment projects, to maximize shareholder value and reduce the cost of
capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Ccmpany may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

As of the balance sheet date, the Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as total loans and borrowings including any
finance cost thereon, trade and other payables, less cash and bank balances. Capital signifies equity
as shown in tho balance sheet plus net debt.
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The gearing ratio as at 30 June 2018 is as follows:

2018 2017
------- {(Rupess in ‘000)-------

Long term financing 13,333,794 12,085,131

Trade and other payables including retention 2,335,350 1,042,592
Accrued interest / mark-up on borrowings 539,770 41,883
Total debt 16,803,914 13,169,606
Less: Cash and bank balances (232,070) (1,994,203)
Net debt 16,576,844 11,175,403
Share Capital 14,859,959 14,859,959
Accumulated (loss) / profit (2,537,583) 96,986
Equity 12,322,376 14,956,945
Capital 28,899,220 26,132,533
Gearing Ratio 57.36% 42.76%

The Company finances its investrment portfolio through equity, borrowings and management of its
project costs with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to
minimize risk.

- 28, REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2018 2017
Chief , . Chief . .

Executive Directors Executives Executive Directcrs  Executives

—-—e (Rupess in ‘000)
Remuneration 16,304 186,304 23,915 15,050 15,050 18,683
Bonus 3,104 3,104 4,459 4,703 4,703 4,582
Housing rent 4,892 4,892 7,175 4,515 4,515 5,605
Retirement benefits 1,379 1,379 1,772 1,254 1,254 1,058
Medical 1,630 1,630 2,891 1,505 1,505 1,868
Utilities 1,830 1,630 2,891 1,505 1,505 1,863

28,939 28,039 42,103 28,532 28,532 33,665

Nurmber 1 ¢ 10 1 6 7

26.1.  The Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director and certain executives of the Cempany are also provided
with the use of the Ccmpany maintained car and other benefits in aceordance with terms of service.

26.2. During the year, the Company has paid fee of Rs. 5.5 milion (2017: 36,045 million) to Chief Executive
and Directcrs.
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27.
27.4.

27.2.
28.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties of the Company comprise companies with common direotorship, retirement funds,
direotors and key management personnel. Detail of transactions with related parties during the year,
other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, are as follows:

Name of related party and Pereentage
relationship with the Company of holding Nature of transaotions 2018 2017

---- {Rupees in ‘000) ----
Associated companies

Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limiled 43.30 Issue of share oapital - 981,473
Rant against office premises 2,792 3,069
Securilies pledged lor guarantess 858,200 868,200
Travel Club (Privaile) Limited Nil Payment for travelling expenses 5,888 7,678
Porilink Intemnational Servioes (Private) Limited Nil Consultancy services 29,900 -
Rent against office premises 687 881
EFU General Insuranca Limited Nil Payment of insurance premium 134,791 112.544
Other related parties
Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited 10.35 Issue of share capltal - 249,633
Staff rotirement conlribution plan Nil Contribution 10,503 5,622

There were no cutstanding balances with related parties as at June 30, 2018 (2017; INil)
EXEMPTION FROM APPLICABILITY OF IFRIC - 12 "SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS”
As explained in note 3.1, the required mandatory disclosure is as follows:

Under IFRIC-12, the consideration required to be made by operator (the Company) for the right to
use the asset is to be accounted for as an intangible asset under IAS - 38 "Intangible Assets”, If the

Company were to follow IFRIC-12 and |IAS-38, the effect on the financial statements would be as
follows:

2018 2017

Reclassification from property, plant and equipment to intangible
assets (Port Concession Rights) — written down value 26,997,302 25,142,944

Reclassification from intangible assets to intangible assets
{(Port Concession Rights) — written down value ~ 456,901 387,280

Reclassification from stores and spares to intangibles assets
{(Port Concession Rights) — written down value 27,459 -

Recognition of intangible assets (Port Concession Rights)
on account of rent of backup and waterfront area (rent) 79,335 79,335

Reccgniticn ¢f present value cf concession liability
cn account cf intangibles (rent) 106,544 103,428

Interest expense charged for the pericd / year cn
account of intangibles (rent) 9,125 8,849

Amortisation expense charged for the period cn
account of intangibles (rent) 2,645 -

Amortisation expense charged for the period on
acoount of ccncession assets (PPE) 944,899 -
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29.

30.

3041.

30.2

30.3

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on October 03, 2018 by Board of Directors of
the Company.

GENERAL
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of persons employed at the terminal as at year end were 481 (2017: 325) and average number
of persons employed at the terminal during the year were 417 (2017: 1686).

Provident Fund

2018 2017
------- {Rupees in '000)-------
——————— {(Unaudited) ------
General disclosures
Size of the fund 62,594 40,440
Cost of investments 62,391 40,413
Fair value of investments 61,333 40,318
Percentage of investments 100% 100%

Categories of investments as a percentage of total assets of provident fund:

2018 2017
—————————————— {Unaudited) -------=n=n=-
{Rupees in '000) (%) {Rupees in '000) (%)
Deposit Account 35,870 58 23,859 59
Mutual funds 25,463 42 16,459 41
Total 61,333 100 40,318 100

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218
of the Act and the rules fcrmulated for this purpose.

Figures have been rounded olf to the nearest thcusand rupees unless otherwise stated.

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Directcr
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PATTERN DF SHARE HOLDING

as at June 30, 2018

Number of Share Halders

1529
2750
2601
6746
2761
1172
339
545
383
256
212
174
235
102
94
7
74
64
59
33
35
32
96
36
25
20
28
14
24
12
24
13
30

-

From

1

101
501
1001
5001
10001
16001
20001
25001
30001
35001
40001
45001
50001
55001
60001
65001
70001
75001
80001
85001
90001
95001
100001
105001
110001
115001
120001
125001
130001
135001
140001
145001
150001
155001
160001
165001
170001
175001
180001
185001
190001
195001
200001
205001
210001
215001
220001
225001
230001
235001
240001
245001
260001
260001

Size of Holding

To

100
500

5000
19000
15000
20000
25000
30000
35000
48000
45000
50000
55000
60000
65000
70000
75000
80000
85000
00000
95000

100000
105000
110000
115000
120000
125000
130000
135000
140000
145000
150000
155000
160000
165000
170000
175000
180000
165000
190000
195000
200000
205000
210000
215000
220000
225000
230000
235000
240000
245000
250000
265000
265000

No. of Shares Held

40,498
1,147,855
2,419,474

19,545,295
21,808,800
14,893,986
15,112,623
12,644,530
10,782,408
8,386,472
8,081,119
7,459,284
11,509,746
5,380,114
5,460,849
4,486,713
5,053,202
4,066,361
4,017,894
2,741,510
3,080,728
2,959,410
9,565,246
3,681,290
2,717,257
2,258,469
3,208,832
1,719,741
3,053,505
1,596,833
3,320,161
1,861,413
4,483,169
1,076,079
1,003,743
1,294,220
1,879,246
1,564,810
1,424,257
1,637,142
1,123,752
581,161
5,197.815
1,414,904
1,244,866
1,268,085
1,960,554
1,561,615
1,145,333
2,600,669
1,189,392
245,000
2,749,000
252,412
793,126
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Number of Share Holders Size of Holding

From

265001
270004
275001
285001
200001
205001
30001
305001
310001
315001
320001
326001
330001
335001
340001
346001
355001
360001
365001
370001
375001
380001
335001
‘390001
395001
400001
405001
410001
415001
420001
430001
446001
450001
455001
460001
455001
470001
475001
490001
495001
500001
520001
525001
630001
545001
550001
565001
595001
600001
610004
620001
625001
635001
640001
1 865001

WM &S

—_
&
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To

270000
275000
280000
290000
295000
300000
305000
310000
315000
320000
326000
330000
335000
340000
345000
350000
360000
365000
370000
375000
360000
335000
380000
395000
400000
405000
410000
415000
420000
425000
435000
450000
455000
460000
465000
470000
475000
480000
495000
500000
505000
525000
530000
635000
550000
885000
570000
600000
605000
615000
625000
630000
640000
646000
670000

No. of Shares Held

1,073,362
1,088,694
560,000
575,208
877,385
3,893,100
908,747
310,000
1,253,463
637,203
966,206
326,500
665,514
1,014,500
341,500
350,000
355,651
725,114
369,571
745,000
378,000
384,033
1,166,294
393,000
3,591,432
1,203,863
408,000
410,670
416,000
844,002
435,000
1,342,229
452,984
455,500
461,504
934,123
940,236
476,780
490,553
2,497,840
1,005,440
1,050,000
1,582,504
531,515
1,650,000
553,557
565,828
2,999,000
601,742
1,225,498
1,244,203
1,257,000
1,280,000
643,197
666,945




PATTERN OF SHARE HOLDING

as at June 30, 2018
Number ot Share Holders Size of Holding No. of Shares Held
1 670001 675000 670,094
1 675001 630000 675,247
2 695001 700000 1,400,000
1 700001 705000 700,945
1 710001 715000 713,829
1 720001 725000 723,687
1 730001 735000 735,000
1 740001 745000 743,133
1 760001 755000 754,000
1 785001 790000 790,000
2 795001 800000 1,600,000
1 830001 835000 634,500
2 855001 860000 1,719,267
1 910001 915000 911,500
1 916001 920000 920,000
1 920001 925000 923,864
1 945001 950000 940,002
1 9850001 955000 950,500
1 980001 965000 964,500
4 995001 1000000 4,000,000
1 1000001 1005000 1,004,000
1 1035001 1040000 1,049,000
1 1045001 1050000 1,059,000
1 1085061 1090000 1,038,500
1 1005001 1100000 1,100,000
1 1115001 1120000 1,116,557
1 1120001 1126000 1,125,000
1 1195001 1200000 1,200,000
1 1315001 1320000 1,315,964
1 1355001 1360000 1,355,900
1 1455001 1460000 1,450,184
1 1580001 1595000 1,593,961
1 1675001 1680000 1,680,000
1 1710001 1715000 1,714,000
1 1730001 1735000 1,734,500
1 1860001 1865000 1,851,500
1 1996001 2000000 2,000,000
1 2400001 2405000 2,401,660
1 2555001 2560000 2,555,845
1 2675001 2680000 2,679,932
1 279500 2800000 2,800,000
1 2940001 2945000 2,940,593
1 2995001 3000000 3,000,000
1 3070001 3075000 3,074,353
1 3145001 3150000 3,145,994
1 3180001 3195000 3,192,500
1 3245001 3250000 3,250,000
1 3615001 3620000 3,619,806
1 4400001 4405000 4,403,500
1 8550001 8555000 6,553,675
1 9415001 9420000 0,417,636
1 11860001 11865000 11,664,163
1 17640001 17645000 17,641,048
1 21320001 21326000 21,321,548
1 21400001 21495000 21,402,282
1 22330001 22335000 22,332,701
1 29770001 20775000 29,774,903
1 153060001 153085000 153,061,809
1 169420001 169425000 169,423,858
1 643400001 643405000 643,401,062
21,471 1,485,995,900
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KEY SHARE HOLDINGS

as at June 30, 2018

Number of

Calegories of Shareholders Shareholders

No. of Shares Held Percentage %

Assoclated Companies, Undertaking And Retated Parties 2 797,176,700 53.65

Directors, Chiel Executive Officer and their Spouse and Mincr Children 9 84,954,034 572
Public Sector Companies and Corporatiens 1 4,403,500 0.80

Banks, Development Finangial Institutions, Non Banking Financiat
Institutiens, Insuranco Companies, Takaful and Pension Funds 9 14,183,966 0.95
Mutual Funds and Modarabas 13 4,464,829 0.30
Foreign Entities 10 187,420,315 12.61
General Public / Individuals - Locat 21,100 370,839,063 24.95
Ceneral Public / Individuals - Fereign 12 002,180 0.07
Qthers 315 21,561,324 1.45
21,471 1,485,995,900 100.00

Addittonal tnformatton
Asscciated Companies, Undertaking And Related Parties

Premler Mercantile Services (Privale) Uimited - Associated Company 1 643,401,062
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited - Other Related Party 1 153,775,638

2 797,176,700 53.65
Directars, Chief Executiva Officer ang their Spouse and Minar Children
Capt. Haleem A. Siddiqui 1 29,774,903
Mrs. Saba Haleerm Siddiqui 1 11,864,183
Capt. Zafar tgbal Awan 1 86,213
Mr, Aasim Azim Siddiqui 1 21,821,648
Mr. Sharique Azim 8iddiqul 1 21,492,282
Mr. Muhammad Masood Ahmed Usmani 1 270,034
Mrs. Hina Usmanl 1 13,282
Syed Nizam A. Shah 1 125,264
Mr. Ali Raza Siddiqui 1 1,325

9 84,954,034 5.72
Executives 16 374,420 0.03
Public Sector Companles and Corperations
Saudi Pak Industrial & Agricultural Investment Co. Ltd.- Pmd 1 4,403,500 0.30
Mutual Funds and Modarabas
CDC - Trustes Atlas Steck Market Fund 1 2,000,000
CDG - Trustee First Dawood Mutual Fund 1 30,000
CDC - Trustee Unit Trust Of Pakistan 1 25,000
CDGC - Trustee AKD Index Tracker Fund 1 180,902
CDG - Trustee MCB DCF Income Fund 1 754,000
CDC - Trustec Laksen tncome Fund - MT 1 27,000
CDC - Trustes NIT fncome Fund — MT 1 378,000
CDC - Trustee Faysal Savings Growth Fund - MT 1 26,000
CDC - Trustee First Habib thceme Fund — MT 1 125,500
CDC - Trustee Faysal MTS Fund —MT 1 42,500
CDC - Trustee Pakistan tncome Fund — MT ) 1 834,500
CDC - Trustee UBL Inceme Opportunity Fund — MT 1 41,000
Providence Medaraba Limited 1 427

13 4,464,829 0.30

Number of

2 H a7, i H
Shareholders holding 5% or more voling interest Shareholders

No. of Shares Held Percentage %

Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited 1 643,401,062 43.30
Jahangir Siddiqui & Ccmpany Limited i 153,775,638 10.35
International Finance Corporation 1 169,423,858 11.40

3 966,600,558 65.056

There is no Purchase / Sales of Shares by Directcrs and their speuses/miner children during the year 2018. (mentiened this in Directors'
Report)
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NOTICE OF 9™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 9" Annual General Mesting of the sharsholders of Pakistan International Bulk
Terminal Limited ("the Oompany") will be held on Monday, October 29, 2018 at 12:00 PM at Beach Luxury
Hotsl, Karachi to transact the following ordinary business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2018 together with the Directors' and Auditors’ reports thereon.

2. To appoint auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2019 and fix their remuneration.

Karachi By Order of the Board,

Dated: October 08, 2018
Arsalan |. Khan
Ccmpany Secretary

Notes:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from October 22, 2018 to October 29,
2018 {both days inclusive) for determining the entitliement of the sharsholders for attending the Annual
General Meeting. Physical transfers and deposit requests under the Central Depository System received
by the Company’s Independent Share Registrar M/s Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited,
CDC House, 99-B, Block B, $.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi — 74400, by the close of business
on October 21, 2018 will be treated in time to attend and vote at the meeting.

2. A member of the Company, entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled
to appoint another person as his / her proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him / her and a proxy
so appointed shall have such rights, as respects attending, speaking and voting at the Annual General
Meeting as are available to the Member. Proxy form, in order to be effective, must be received at the
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the Meeting. The proxy need not be a
Member of the Company. The proxy shall produce his / her original Computerized National Identity Card
(CNIC) or passport to prove his identity. Form of proxy is attached to the Notice.

8. Members are requested to notify any ehange in their address immadiately to our Registrar M/s Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-g-Faisal,
Karachi - 74400.

4. CDC Aocount Holders will further have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down in Giroular 1
dated 26 January 2000 issued by the Securitics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan,

A. FORATTENDING THE MEETING

I in case of individuals, the account holder of sub-acoount holder and / or the person whose securities are
in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate his
identity by showing his original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time
if attending the meeting. CDC account holders are also requested to bring their CDC partioipate ID number
and account number.

il. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Direotor's/Trustes resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the masting.
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NOTICE OF 9™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

B.

L

FOR APPOINTING PROXIES

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / cr the person whose securities are
in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy
form as per the above requirement (note 2 abave).

The proxy farm shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, address and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of CNIC or the passpart of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the
praxy form.

The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or ariginal passport at the time of the mesting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors'/Trustee’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be submitted with the praxy form to the Company, and the same shall be
preduced in original at the time of the meeting to authenticate the identity.

Payment cf Cash Dividend through Electranic Mode

SECHF has previously initiated e-dividend mechanism through Natice No. 8{4)SM/CDC/2008 dated 05 April
2018 in arder to make process of payment of cash dividend more efficient. The provisions of Section 242
of the Companies Act, 2017 require the listed companies that any dividend payable in cash shall only be
paid through electronic made directly into the bank account of designated by the entitled sharsholders.
Subsequently, vide Circular No. 18 of 2017 dated 01 August, 2017, SECP has allowed one time
relaxation till 31 October, 2017 to pay cash dividend by dividend warrants. Accordingly, the shareholders
holding physical shares are requested to provide the Company’s Share Registrar at the address given
herein above, electronic dividend mandate on E-Dividend Form available on the Company’s website:
www.pibt,com.pk. In the case of shares held in CDC, the same information should be provided to the CDS
participants for updating and forwarding to the Company.

Deduction of Incame Tax from Dividend at Revised Rates

Fursuant to the pravisions of Finance Aot, 2017 effective 01 July 2017, the deduction of income tax from
dividend payments shall be made on the basis of filers and non-filers as follows:

S. No. Nature of Shareholders Rate of deduction
1 Filers of Income Tax Return 15.0%
2 Nan- Filers of [ncome Tax Return 20.0%

Income Tax will be deducted on the basis of Active Tax Payers List pasted on the Federal Board of
Revenue website.

Members seeking exemption from deduotion of income tax or are eligible far deductien at a reduced rate
are requested to submit a valid tax certificate cr necessary documentary evidence, as the case may be.

The shareholders who have joint shareholdings held by Filers and Non-Filers shall be dealt with separately
and in such particular situation, each account holder is to be treated as sither a Filer ar a Non-Filer and tax
will be deduoted according to his shareholding. If the share is not ascertainable then each account halder
will be assumed to hold equal propartion of shares and the deduction will be made accordingly. Therefore,
in order to avaid deduoction of tax at a higher rate, the joint accaunt halders are requested ta provide the
below details of their shareholding to the Share Registrar of the Company latest by the AGM date.
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7.

10.

Folio/CDC Name of . Principal/Joint
Acccunt No. Shareholder CNIC Sharehalding Total Shares Shareholder

Unclaimed Dividend and Bonus Shares

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, pursuant to Section 244 of the Companies Act
2017 {the "Act"), directs all Companies to submit a statement to the Commission through eServices portal
{https://eservices.secp.gev.pk/eServices/) stating therein the number or amounts, as the case may be,
which remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it is due and payable in respect
of shares of a company/dividend and any other instrument or amount which remain unclaimed cr unpaid,
as may be specified.

Piease note that in compliance with Section 244 of the Companias Act, 2017, after having completed the
stipulated procedure, all dividends unclaimed for a period of three years from the date due and payable
shall be deposited to the credit of the Federai Covernment and in case of shares, shall ba delivered 1o the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Circulations of Annual Reports through CD/DVD/USB

Pursuant 1o the Securities and Exchenge Commission of Pakistan’s notification S.R.O 470()/2016 dated
81 May, 2016, the shareholders of the company in 7" AOM of the Company held on 26 October 2016
had accorded their consent fcr transmission of annual reports including annual audited aceounts, notices
of annuai general meetings and other information contained therein of the Company through CD or DVD
or USB instead of transmitting the sama in hard copies. The shareholders who wish 1o receive hard
copy cf the aforesaid documents may send to the Company Secretary / Share Registrar, the Standard
Request Form available on the website of the Company and the Company will supply hard copies of the
aforesaid document to the shareholders on demand, free of cest, within one weak of such demand. The
shareholders who intend to reccive the annual report including the notice of meeting through e-mail are
requested to provide their written consent on the Standard Request Form available on the Ccmpany’s

website: www,pibt.com.pk

Placement of Financial Statements

The Company has placed the Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 along
with Auditors and Directors Reports thereon on its website: www.pibt.com.pk

Video Conference Facility

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, the shareholders residing in a eity and holding at
least 10% of the total paid up share capital may demand the Company to provide the facility of video-link
for participating in the meeting. The demand for video-link facility shall be received by the Share Registrar
at the address given herein above at least 7 days prior to the date of the meeting on the Standard Form
available on the Company's website: www.pibt.com.pk
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Pakistan internationai Bolk Tarminal Limited

Proxy Form

The Gompany Secretary
Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited
2nd Floor, Business Plaza, Mumtaz Hassan Road, Karachi

l/we, of being member of Pakistan
International Bulk Terminal Limited and holder of Ordinary Shares as per Share
Register Folio No. and /or CDC Participant ID No. hereby
appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss of failing
her of (Full Address)

- being member of
the Company as cur proxy to attend, act and vote for us and on our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held on Octaber 29, 2013 and at any adjournment thereof,

Signed this day of 2018

WITNESS: In presence of

1. Name
Address Signature
CNIC No on Rs. 5/-

Signature Réa::::;e

2. Name
Address
GNIC No
Signature

tes:

1. Amember entitlied to attend and vole at a General Meeling is entitled 1o appoint a proxy to atlend and vote
for his/her proxy who shall have. such rights as respects attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as
are available to a member.

2. The Proxy in order to be valid must be signed across Five Rupees Revenue Stamp and should be deposited
wilh the Company not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting.

3. The Proxy shall authentlcate his/her identity by shcwing his/her criginal CNIG cr original passport and bring
folio number at the time of attending the meeling.

4. Signature should agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company.

5. CDC shareholders and their Proxies must attach sither an attested photocapy of their Computerized National
[dentity Card or Passport with this Proxy Form.

6. In case of proxy by a ccrporate entity, Board of Directors resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature and attested ccpies cf CNIC cr Passpcrt of the Proxy shall be submitted along with the proxy form.
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